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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone ind AS financial statements of Kestone Integrated
Marketing Services Private Limited {"the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Ind AS Financial Statements") .

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards
("Ind AS"), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules
thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
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financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone Ind AS financial

statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 1", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our
separate report in "Annexure 2".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year. Hence section
197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable;
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h. With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

(ii)The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise; and

(iii)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048

Raj Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 074715

Date: May 29, 2019

NEW DELHI
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' in the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
Kestone Integrated Marketing Services on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2019]

(i)
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and as Informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The company does not hold any immovable property. Accordingly, Para 3(1)(c) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

(ii) The company is a service company, engaged in the business of providing managed
manpower services, marketing and sale services, online marketing support services and
pass through services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ii) of Paragraph 3 of the order
is not applicable to the company.

(iii) The Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act.

(a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that, the terms and conditions of
the aforesaid loans granted by the Company are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of such
loans has not been stipulated thus we are unable to comment whether the repayments
or receipts are regular and report amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any,
as required under paragraph 3(iii)(c) of the Order.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, as the schedule of repayment has not been
stipulated, we are unable to comment whether there is any overdue amount of loans
granted to subsidiary, fellow subsidiary company and other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

(iv) Based on information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
services of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

¥-
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(vii)
(a) The Company Is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed

statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, goods
and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to
it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty,
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues with
respect to income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, excise duty, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and banks. The Company has
no dues in respect of government & debenture holder during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has utilized the money raised by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for
which they were raised. The company has not raised money by way of public issue offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(X) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management during the year.

(xi) As the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year, the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xi1) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Act,
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph
3{xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the
year.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Raj Kumar Agarv/al

Partner

Membership No.074715

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

new DELHI

&ACCO'̂
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in
the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Kestone Integrated
Marketing Services Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2019.]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019
in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities Include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

^ACCO'̂
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
follov/ing material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2019:

a) Comprehensive procurement policies for purchase of goods and services have not been
documented, which could potentially result in the aforesaid Company procuring
unnecessary goods and services, or procuring goods of lower quality, or procure goods and
services at higher prices.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as of March 31, 2019, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2019 Ind
AS financial statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses does not affect our
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

For HaribhaktiS Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Raj Kumar Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 074715

Date: May 29, 2019

Place: New Delhi

NEW DELHI
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Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

lAtlamounts are Rupees /n tacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018
Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 263.09 319.33
Intangible assets 4 46.97 1.25
Investments in subsidiary 5 255.07 255.07
Financial assets

(i) Loans 6 59.59 52.44
(11)Other Financial Assets 7 175.00

Deferred tax asset (net) 8 80.94 101.24
Non-current tax asset (net) 9 1,512.73 856.86
Other non-current assets 10 8.96 16.60
Total non-current assets 2,402.35 1,602.79

Current assets

Financial assets

(1) Trade receivables 11 4,120.61 2,863.92
(11) Cash and cash equivalents 12 79.44 21.01
(ill) Bank balances other than (11) above 13 799.65 291.93
(iv) Loans 14 319.52 369.84
(v) Other financial assets 15 827.29 1,309.86

Other current assets 16 368.24 772.28
Total current assets 6,514.75 5,628.84

Total assets 8,917.10 7,231.63

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 17 100.00 100.00
Other equity 18 3,471.93 3,179.21
Total equity 3,571.93 3,279.21

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

FInandal liabilities

(1) Borrowings 19 525.87 17.13
Provisions 20 138.81 107.28
Other non-current liabilities 21 17.55 12.38
Total non-current liabilities 682.23 136.79

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(1) Borrowings 22 1,393.25 1,045.14
(11) Trade payables 23

- dues of micro and »nall enterprises .

- dues of other than micro and small enterprises 2,113.58 1,996.21
(III) Other financial liabilities 24 606.52 347.98

Other current liabilities 25 548.05 425.62
Provisions 26 1.54 0.68
Total Current liabilities 4,662.94 3,815.63
Total liabilities 5,345.17 3,952,42

Total equity and liabilities 8,917.10 7,231.63

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 46 are an Integral pan of these financialstatements.

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstra^ 10>^3W/W100048

AAembership No.;074:AlV

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29. 2019

Raj KunwXgarwal '
Partner i^ (''̂ EW DELHI )*,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

OIN: 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date; May 29, 2019

Nlkhil Mahajan

Director

DIN: 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019



Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts are Rupees in (acs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended

March 31, 2019
Year ended

March 31, 2018

Income

Revenue from operations
Other Income

Total Income

Expenses

Employee benefit expense
Finance costs

Depredation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/ (toss) before exceptional Items and tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

Tax adjustment for earlier years

Deferred tax

27

28

29

30

31

32

34

Profit for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclasslffed to profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to these items

Total other comprehensive Income for the year (B)

Total comprehensive Income for the year (A + B)

Earnings per equity share 33

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 46 are an Integral part of these finandal statements.

11,976.17

149.63

12,125.80

2.262.37

160.06

91.14

9.207.38

11,720.95

404.85

108.02

16.20

280.63

14.73

(4.10)

10.63

291.26

28.06

28.06

As per our report of even date

For Haribhaktl 6t Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstratipnjl<lo. 10359W/W100048

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Raj Kuma>

Partner

Membership No.rOy^

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

DIN: 00307326

\^UiJ
Nlkhll Mahajan
Director

DIN: 00033404

9,503.19

312.29

9,815.48

2,049.76

102.05

128.30

7,029.69

9,309.80

505.68

202.67

20.05

(49.95)

332.91

12.17

(4.06)

8.11

341.02

33.29

33.29

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019'
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019



Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are Rupees In lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Sundry balances written off

Losson sale of property, plant and equipment

Finance cost

Adjustment for Loan Processing Fee

Liability no longer required written back

Unwinding of interest on security deposits

Expense recognized on amortized cost

Lease equalisation reserve

Interest income

Provision for doubtful advances

Loss allowance on trade receivables

Bad debts written off

Unrealised forex (gain)/loss/Net exchange differences

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustment for (lncrease)/decrease in Assets

- Trade receivables

- Non-current loans and other financial assets

- Current loans and other financial assets

- Other non current assets

- Other current assets

Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in Liabilities

- Trade payables

• Provisions

• Other current financial liabilities

- Other current liabilities

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations

Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Term deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents
Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposits
Creation of fixed deposits

Loans to related party

Repayment of loan to related party

Investments in subsidiary

Interest received

Net cash generated from / (Used in) investing activities (B)

Cash Flow from financing activities

Proceeds from short term borrowings

Repayments from short term borrowings

Repayments of long term borrowings

Proceeds from long term borrowings
Payment of Processing charges

Interest expense paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase/fdecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A-i-B>C)

B.aUnce.at;^ beginning of the year
ajh^hbj:a3^^uivalents at the beginning of the year

of the year

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

404.85 505.67

91.14 128.30

30.70 5.64

(0.07)

160.02 100.60

0.04

(68.03) (150.21)

(7.05) (7.03)
• 7.24

5.17 6.81

(70.39) (105.80)

• (0.12)

32.32 24.49

• 40.35

(9.90) (16.23)

568.80 539.91

(1,287.73) (593.22)

(0.10) (17.57)

536.26 (145.53)

7.64 (8.84)

373.34 (622.46)

146.86 989.37

47.12 40.59

78.19 (124.90)

122.43 (199.03)

592.81 (141.68)

(763.89) (461.01)

(171.08) (602.69)

(31.38) (64.46)

(49.17) (0.06)

• (58.68)

251.40 227.71

(934.12)

- (247.78)

45.07 629.25

- (248.41)

30.57 156.44

(687.63) 394.01

455.98 288.30

(107.87)

(16.45) (16.05)

750.00 24.00

(7.50)

(157.02) (99.34)

917.14 196.91

58.43 (11.77)

21.01 32.78

79.44 21.01



Keston« Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Allamounts ore Rupees in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balancesheet for liabilities arising fromfinancing activities:

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2019

balance as at April 1, 20i 8

Loan drawals (in cash) /interest accrued during the year
Adjustment for Processing Fee

Loan repayments/interest payment during the year
Non Cash Item:

Amotisation

Balance as at March 31, 2019

For the year ended March 31. 2018

Balance as at April 1, 2017

Loandrawals (In cash) /interest accrued during the year
Loan repayments/interest payment during the year

Non-current

borrowings

33.58

750.00

(7.50)

(16.45)

0.04

25.90

24.00

(16.05)

Current

borrowings

1,045.14

455.98

(107.87)

1,393-25

756.84

288.30

Interest on

borrowings

0.25

158.58

(157.02)

0.27

99.32

(99.34)

Balance as at March 31, 2018 33.85

There are no non-cashchanges on account of effect of changesin foreignexchange rates and fair values.

As per our report of even date

1,045.14 0.25

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

RrmRegistration nJ. 10K23W/W100048

Raj Kumar Agarw

Partner

AAembership Na.:07471S

Place: New Delhi

Date: ASay 29,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Satya Narayanan .R

Director

DIN: 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

NUJ
Nikhil Mahajan

Director

DIN: 00033404

Place: New (Mhi

Date: May29, 2019



KestoneIntegrated MarketingServices Private Limited
Statement ofChanges In Equity for theyear ended March 31, 2019
(AU amounts areRupees inlacs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

Particulars
Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2017
100.00

Change inequity share capiUl during theyear2017-18
Balance as at March 31, 2018

100.00

Change in equity share capital during the year 2018-19
balance as at AAarch 31, 2019

100.00

(b) Other equity

Attributable to owners of the company

Particluars
Reserves & Surplus Items of OCi

Retained

earnings Deemed Equity
Remeasurement of

defined benefit

plans

Total

2,823.32 4.47 9.12 2,836.91

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
332.91 1.28

8.11

334.19

8.11Total comprehensive income for the year
332.91 1.28 8.11

3,156.23 5.75 17.23

280.63 1.46
Other comprehensive income for the year

10.63Total comprehensive income for the year
280.63 1.46 10.63

3,436.86 7.21 27.86 3,471.93

As per our report of even date

For Haribhaktl 6 Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 103

Raj Kumar Agarwa'

Partner

Membership No.:074715,

Place: New Delhi

Date; AAay 29,2019

riEW DELHI'*

Dacco^

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Satya Nar^
Director

DIN: 00307326

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019

MxJJ
Nikhil Mahajan

Director

DIN: 00033404

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019



Kestone integrated Marketing Services Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Reporting Entity

Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited ("the Company") is a company domiciled in India,
with its registered office situated Plot No. 9A, Sector 27A, Mathura Road, Faridabad - Haryana - 121003.
The Company was incorporated on February 3, 1997 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of CL Educate Limited. The Company is engaged in the business of providing
marketing and sales services, manpower management services and infrastructure support services.

1. a Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 29,
2019.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used
in the previous year.

(ii) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the above criteria, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/noncurrent
classification of assets and liabilities.

(iii) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated. The sign
'0.00' in these financial statements indicates that the amount involves are below INR one thousand and

the sign indicates that the amount is nil.

(iv)

(V)

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items

Items

Certain financial assets and liabilities

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

Use of estimates and judgements

Measurement basis

Fair value

Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
zed prospectively.
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Notes to the flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Judgements

Information about judgements made In applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is Included In the following notes:

• Note no 36: lease classification

• Note no 42: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are

held;

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2019 is Included In the following notes:

• Note no 38: measurement of defined benefit obligations and plan assets: key actuarial assumptions;

• Note no 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

• Note no 4: measurement of useful lives of intangible assets;

• Note no 42: fair value measurement of financial Instruments;

• Note no 35: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the

likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

• Note no 34: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability o/ future taxable profit against which tax

losses carried forward can be used.

• Note no 4: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts

including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated Intangible assets;

• Note no.42: impairment of trade receivables: the Company review carrying amount of trade

receivables at the end of each reporting period and provide for expected credit loss.

(vi) Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability In an ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either -

• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
• In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole -

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 -input other than quoted prices Included in level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities

.eithec::^ectly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
'"^\;^lnput for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

^cOACC
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments (other than investment in
subsidiaries), at fair value at each reporting date. The same are disclosed in Note 5.

2. Significant accounting policies:

(i) Revenue recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18
Revenue. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initially
applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is
applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and
the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative
information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the
financial statements of the Company is insignificant.

Refer note 2(i) - Significant accounting policies - Revenue recognition in the Annual report of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the revenue recognition policy as per Ind AS 18.

The Company earns revenue primarily from Managed Manpower Services (MMS), Marketing Et sales services
(Events), Online marketing & support services (Digital).

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated
with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognised at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any
taxes/duties and discounts.

Revenue from services

Revenue for marketing & sales service, managed manpower services and online marketing support services
is recognised in profit & loss statement over the period of time by measuring progress towards satisfaction
of performance obligation for the services rendered at the reporting date. The Company uses output
method for measurement of revenue from such services, as per terms of respective agreements.

Revenue as an agent

The Company derives its revenue from event & managed manpower services. When the Company
determines that the nature of its promise, is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. entity is the principal), then it recognises the revenue earned as the gross amount of
consideration. However, where the Company promise, is to arrange, for the customer to provide
goods/services as an agent then revenue is recognised only to extent of commission/markup/charges
earned by it. In such cases the Company does not control the goods and services provided to a customer.
The indicators evaluated by the Company to conclude if it is an agent are the following:

(a) That another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract;

(b) The Company does not have any inventory risk

(c) The Company does not have discretion in establishing prices for the other party's goods or services

and, therefore, the benefit that the Company can receive from those goods or services is limited;

J^^ompany's consideration is in the form of acommission / service charge or markup; and
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(e) the Company is not exposed to credit risk for the amount receivable from a customer in exchange for

the other party's goods or services.

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section vii(iv) in Financial Instruments.

Contract Assets (Unbilled Revenue)

Contract Assets is an entity's right to consideration in exchange of service that the entity has transferred
to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time. This is
recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.

Contract Liability (Unearned Revenue)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed
and received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such
services are to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the
provisions of the Ind AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: -

• The performance obligation is satisfied upon rendering of services as per the terms of contract.
Measurement of progress of performance completion is based on judgement of Key Account Manager
(KAM) of respective event and confirmed by the CEO.

• Contract fulfilment costs includes the sales incentives provided to employees for obtaining contract.
The company has elected a practical expedient which allows the company to expense off the contract
fulfilment cost immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss as the amortization period of the
assets that the company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by nature of services, geography
and type of customers.

Revenue from Related Party Is recognised based on transaction price which is at Arms-Length Price,

(ii) Recognition of dividend income and interest income

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans Is recognised using the effective Interest
method.

The 'effective interest rate' Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

New Delhi
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Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which right to receive the payment is
established.

(iit) Property, plant and equipment:

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts, rebates and recoverable taxes
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, which are equal to useful lives
specified as per schedule II to the Act and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as under:

Particulars

Tangible Assets:

Furniture and fittings

Office equipment - Electric

Office equipment - Other

Vehicle

fltfflipfti^^.eq'Jipment

Useful life

(years)

10

10

5

8

3
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The management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and
equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for Intended use. Depreciation
on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or
discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

(iv) Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the
asset will flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are initially
measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using

the straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of profit and
loss.

The useful life of intangible asset is as follows:

Intangible asset Useful life (in years)

Acquired and internally 5
generated software

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and

changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and
recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU or an individual asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money

specific to the CGU or the asset.

OaCZO
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.

(vi) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction or production of assets which takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(vii) Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit
and loss. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

• amortised cost;

• Fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), or Fair value through profit and loss
• Investment in equity of subsidiary are accounted and carried at cost less impairment in accordance

with IND AS 27.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

vestment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
L:
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• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are

measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

• the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

• how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

• how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

• the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

• contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

• terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest r§te features
prepayment and extension features; and

New Delhi
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• terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. nonrecourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income
and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is
recognised in the statement of profit 6t loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. Afinancial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

iv. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
x^financ^x^asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transac^n in

^<'̂ ^hiTiT '̂iK^antially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are -
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which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

V. Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

- Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
• a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;
• the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider

otherwise;

• it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
• the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

^/her[r^-<i^rmining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantiv-wace init^
^.'3^€o^^jb/K\and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considerX$^S[$iS^\,and
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supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

• the financial asset is past due and is not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).Loss allowances
for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

(viii) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that the carrying value will be
recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale the related assets are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-
accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, classified as
held for sale, shall be included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised; which is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

(ix) Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of an
arrangement at inception date.

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
?:oa§ideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
'' ^ on the basis of their relative fair values.
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Where the Company is lessee

Finance Lease

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalised.

Aleased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as determined by the
management or the useful life envisaged in Schedule II to the Act, whichever is lower. However, if there is
no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the
capitalised asset is depreciated on a straight-line basisover the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset (the lease term) and the useful life envisaged in Schedule II to the Act.

Operating Lease

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part
of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.

Where the Comoanv is the lessor

Finance Lease

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Company apportions lease
rentals between the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement
of the finance lease receivable and reduce the amount of income recognised over the lease term.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company does not transfersubstantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in property, plant
and equipment. Lease Income on an operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless such payments are structured to Increase in line with
expected general inflation.

(x) Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified asshort
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement

profji^and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabiU^s are
current employee benefit obligation in the statement of financial position. x'v^rke^S.
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Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan
at a predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952except for Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI), where a policy is taken from
Life Insurance Corporation of India. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed
by the Government of India. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly
contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined contribution plan are recognised as an employee
benefit expenses in statement of profit and loss in the period during which the related services are
rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefits payable to eligible
employees of the company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
as at the balance sheet date. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on
retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days
basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.
The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for
past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations
are to be settled.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gain or loss on change in
present value of the defined benefit obligation or change in return of the plan assets is recognised as an
income or expensein the other comprehensive income. Thecompany's obligation in respect of the same is
calculated by estimatingthe amountof future benefit that employee haveearned in the current and prior
period, discounting that amountand deducting the fair valueof any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

The expected return on plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return of such assets.

The Company contributes to a policy taken from the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Other long-term benefits: Leave encashment

Benefits under the Company's leave encashment scheme constitute other employee benefitswhich are
rovided to the employees of specific projects only. The liability in respect of leave encashment is

on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the

p New Delhi
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accounting period. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss.

(xi) Foreign exchange transactions and translations

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency
amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are
restated/translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities which are measured in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value
which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's
monetary items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported
in previous financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary
assets) are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

(xii) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for;

^-fTi^p^rary differences arising on the initial recognition ofassets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the^tmie-^Cthe
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• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be real.

Minimum alternate tax

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in
the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the
Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is
reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

(xiii) Contingent liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Provision

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount ofobligation.

^ ^hp-~effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
'^' '^'jture cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required^.^ti5^feN;he
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present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as finance cost.

(xiv) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

(XV) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareare calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the yearattributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted into equity shares as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date.

(xvi) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.
In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' or 'CODM' within
the meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 37 for segment information.

(xvii) Dividends paid

Dividend to shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from equity, in the year in which the
dividends are approved by the shareholders. However, interim dividends, if any, declared by the Board of

^jrectocSj^which does not need shareholder's approval, are recognised as a liability and deducted from
^'•f^ine^ea^ings, in the year in which the dividends are so declared.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Vehicles Computers
Furniture and

fixtures
Office •quipments Totd

Gross carrying amount

balance as at April 1, 2017

Additions

Diqsosals

35.77

26.44

186.02

27.87

0.29

143.14

11.49

152.60

6.38

517.53

72.18

0.29
BalaiKeas at March 31, 2018 62.21 213.60 154.63 158.98 589.42

Balance as at April 1, 2018

Additions

Disposals

62.21 213.60

29.15

0.31

154.63 158.98

2.30

589.42

31.45

0.31

Balance as at March 31, 2019 62.21 242.44 154.63 161.28 620.56

Accumulated depreciation and in^irinent losses

Balance at April 1, 2017

Depreciation for the year

Disposals

4.79

7.15

87.48

69.06

0.17

15.44

15.44

36.53

34.35

144.24

126.02

0.17

Balance as at March 31, 201S 11.94 156.39 30.88 70.88 270.09

Balance at April 1, 2018

Depreciation for the year

Di^sals

11.94

7.93

156.39

31.48

0.31

30.88

16.37

70.88

31.91

270.09

87.69

0.31

Balance as at March 31, 2019 19.87 187.56 47.25 102.79 357.47

Carrying amount (net)

As at March 31, 2018 50.27 57.21 123.75 88.10 319.33

As at March 31. 2019 42.34 54.88 107.38 58.49 263.09

Note:1. All the present and future movable fixedassets are subject to collateralcharge to secure the Company's current borrowings referred Innotes as cashcredit
from bank (refer note 22).

2. Vehicles are hypothecated for the vehicle loans from bank and other financial Institutions.

3. For amortisation and useful life, please refer accounting policy note no. 2 (lii).

Intangible assets

Particulars
Computer
software

Tot^

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2017

Additions

Disposals

6.35

0.07

6.35

0.07

Balance as at Atarch 31, 2018 6.42 6.42

Balance as at April 1, 2018

Additions

Disposals

6.42

49.17

6.42

49.17

Balance as at March 31, 2019 55.59 55.59

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2017

Amortisation charged for the year
Disposals

2.89

2.28

2.89

2.28

Balaitce as at March 31, 2018 5.17 5.17

Balance as at April 1, 2018

Amortisation charged for the year

Disposals

5.17

3.45

5.17

3.45

Balance as at March 31, 2019 8.62 8.62

Carrying amount (net)

As at March 31, 2018 1.25 1.25

As at March 31, 2019 46.97 46.97

Note: 1. Allthe present and future movable fixed assets are subject to collateral charge to secure the Company's current borrowingsreferred In notes as cash credit
from bank (refer note 22).

2. For amortisation and useful life, please refer accounting policy note no. 2(fv).
3. Refer note 'a' below for Internally generated Intangible assets.

a. Details of internally generated intaitgible assets

Recruitment
Total

s^ware (Sofi)

Gross carrylrtg amount

Balance as at April 1, 2018

Additions 49.17 49.17

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2019 49.17 49.17

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April i, 2018

Amortisation for the year 2.45 2.45

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2019 2.45 2.45

Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2019 46.72 46,72

:itment software and Iscapitalized on December 31, 2018and It Isa high-end resource matching solution for any company lookingto hire technical St IT
immediately analyses high volumes of IT personnel's CVs,evaluates, filters and sorts the most suitable caiKlidates.

the employee cost Incurred In respect of the development of the software.

itomer requirements as the basis for filtering through an unlimited nucrter of CVs

hrough the CVs and suggesting the most relevant candidates

ing the best applicants & track applications
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5 investments In subsidiary

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

Investment in equity instruments

Unquoted, at cost 255.07 255.07

514,000 (March 31, 2018: 514,000) fully paid up equity shares of SGD1 each of Kestone CL AsiaHubPte
Limited (Formerly known as CareerLauncher Asia Educational Hub Pte Limited)

Total equity investment in subsidiaries 255,07 255.07

Aggregateamount of unquoted investments 255.07 255.07

Aggregate amount of quoted investments & market value thereof

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of invesbnents

There are nosignificant restrictions onthe rightofownership, realizability ofinvestments or the remittance ofincome andproceeds ofdisposal.

Name of entity Relationship Place of business % of ownership Accounting
Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte Limited Subsidiary Singapore 100X Cost

6 Non-current financial asset - loans

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 59.59 52.44

59.59 52.44

For explanation onthe company credit riskmanagement process. (Refer Note42)

Oth«' non-current financial assets

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018
Depositsvrith maturity for more than 12 monUisfrom reporting date 175.00

175.00 -

Note:

Depositsare under lien towards Term Loanfrom Tata Capital FinancialServices Ltd.

Deferred tax asset (net)

As at

March 31, 2019

As at

March 31. 2018

Deferred tax asset (net) (Refer Note 34) 80.94 101,24

80.94 101.24

Non current tax assets (net)

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

Advance tax and tax deducted at source{net of provisions for tax amounting
toRs. 471.19 lakhs (March 31, 2018- Rs. 363.16 Lakhs)}

1,512.73 856.86

1,512.73 856.86

Other non-current assets

T^flWrent

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

8.96 16.60

5(new^i^ 8.96 16.60

i^arke/^;,
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11 Trade receivables

Considered good - Secured
Considered good • Unsecured

Credit Impaired

Less:Allowances for Credit impairment

Trade receivables from related parties (included above)

Note : 1. For trade receivables from related parties Refer Note 39.
2. The Company has measured Expected Credit Loss oftrade receivable based on simplified approach asper Indu AS 109 "Financial Instruments" except
on related party customers. (Refer Note 42)
3. For explanation onthe Company credit riskmanagement process (Refer Note 42)
4. No trade orother receivable aredue frwn director orother officer oftheCompany and firms orprivate companies inwhich any director isa partner,
a directoror a member either jointlyor severally withother persons exceptas stated above.

5. Tradereceivable are pledged as securities for borrowings Wken from bank(Refer Note 22)

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks:

• on current account

Forexplanationon the companycredit risk managementprocess (ReferNote42).

13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

D^xjsits with original maturity formorethan3 months but lessthan12months from the reporting date

Note:

Fixed deposits amounting Rs 790.00 lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs. 290.00 laWis) are under lien, outof which fixed deposits amounting Rs. 290.00 lakhs
(March 31, 2018 Rs. 290.00 lakhs) are under lien towards cash credit facility from Indusind Bank taken by the company, fixed deposits amounting Rs.
200.00 lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs Nil) are under lien towards term loan facility from TataCapital Financial Services Ltd and fixed deposits amounting Rs.
300.00lakhs(AAarch 31, 2018Rs. Nil) are under lien towardsoverdraft facilitytaken from ICICI Bank.

For explanation on the company credit risk management process (Refer Note 42).

14 Current financial asset - loans

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

Loan to related parties

Loan to others

Loan to employees

Note : 1. For loan to related parties (Refer Note 39)
2. Forexplanationon the companycredit riskmanagementprocess(ReferNote42)

15 Other current financial assets

Contract Assets*

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits
Interest accrued but not due c*i loan given to related parties (Refer Note 39)
Interest accrued but not due on loan given to others
Amount recoverable from Non Banking Financial Company

r mover*

h

on the company credit risk management process (Refer Note 42)

contract assets. Refer Footnote 27 (iii)

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

4,120.61 2.863.92

48.93 120.11

4,169.54 2,984.03

(48.93) (120.11)

4,120.61 2,863.92

1,011.16 1,570.95

1,011.16 1,570.95

As at

March 31, 2019

As at

March 31, 2018

79.44 21.01

79.44 21.01

As at

March 31. 2019
As at

March 31. 2018

799.65 291.93

799.65 291.93

As at

March 31. 2019

15.50

260.05

27.54

16.43

319.52

As at

March 31. 2019

697.51

22.53

104.38

1.35

1.52

827.29

As at

March 31. 2018

31.53

328.21

10.10

369.84

As at

March 31, 2018

1,221.15

4.45

83.99

0.27

1,309.86
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16 Other current assets

Advances to suppliers;

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Less; Provision for doubtful

Prepaid expenses

Advances to emoloyees
Prepaid rent
Balances recflSS^BelCBm sovemment authorities

«'nie space is intentionally left blank»

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

AAarch 31. 2018

247.93 618.06

0.22

(0.22)
38.68 18.60

5.94 9.84

7.69 7.64

68.00 116.14

368.24 772.28
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17 Share capital

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Authorised

1,000,000 (March 31,2018:1,000,000 ) equitysharesof Rs 10each 100.00 100.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

1,000,000(March 31,2018: 1,000,000]equity shares of Rs10 each 100.00 100.00

100.00 100.00

During the year the company has neither issued nor bought back any shares.

a. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Voting

Each holdw of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividends

TheCompany declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Thedividend prc^wsed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholden in
ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend since its
incorporation.

Liquidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company, aftw
distribution of all preferentialamounts,if any. Such distributed amounts will be in proportion to the numberofequitysharesheld bythe shareholders.

b. Reconciliationof number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

At the beginning of the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

10,00,000 10,00,000

10,00,000 10,00,000

c. Detailsof shares held by holding company and shar^olders holding more than SXshares in the Company:
The Company is a wholly ownedsubsidiaryof CL EducateLimited contributingto 10056 of the share capital of the company.

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares Percentage holding No. of Shares Percentage holding

CLEducate Limited and its nominees' 10,00,000 10056 10,00,000 10056

* Noneof the nominees individually own more than 556 of the total shares issued by the Company.

d. No classofshareshavebeen allotted as fullypaidup pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paidup bywayof bonus
shares or bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding to the balance sheet date.

18 Oth«'equity

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening balance 3,156.23 2,823.32
(♦) Net profit for the period 280.63 332.91

Closing balance (A) 3,436.86 3,156.23

Deemed equity contribution
Opening balance 5.75 4.47

Additions 1.46 1.28

Closing balance (B) 7.21 5.75

Other comprehensive income

Opening balance 17.23 9.12

Additions 10.63 8.11

Closing balance <C) 27.86 17.23

Total reserves and surplus (A*B*C) 3,471.93 3,179.21

Cwnpany

rpose of other reserves/ other equity

•ived guarantee from its holding Company on the borrowings of Company. The fair valuation of the financial guarantee has resulted i
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19 Non-current borrowings

Secured

Term Loan from Financial Institutions

V^icle Loan

- From Banks

- From others

Total non-current borrowings

Less: Current maturities of non-current vehicle loan from banks (included in note 24)
Less: Curent maturities of non-current borrowing from others (included in note 24)

Less: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (included in note 24)

As at

March 31, 2019

743.22

17.23

760.45

4.63

229.17

0.78

525.87

As at

March 31, 2018

29.68

4.16

33.84

12.29

4.16

0.26

17.13

Note:

i. Vehicle loans from bank and other financial institutions are secured against hypothecation of concerned v^icles.

Collateral security (to Tata Capital)

a. Lien on fixed deposits amounting Rs. 375.00 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs nil) (Refer Note 7 and 13)

Guarantees

a. The Loan from Tata Capital is further secured by personal guarantees of directors of the company i.e. by, Mr. Gautam Purl and Mr. Nikhil Mahajan.

b. Aggregate amount of loans guaranteed by directors of the Company as at year end Rs. 750.00 lakhs ( March 31, 2018: Rs.nil)

Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:

For amount outstanding as at March 31 . 2019

Loan

Loan from HOFC Bank Limited

Loan from HDFC Bank Limited

Loan from TATA Capital

Loan

For amount outstanding as at March 31. 2018

Loan

Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

Loan from HDFC Bank Limited

Loan from HDFC Bank Limited

Loan from HDFC Bank Limited

Company's exposure to liquidity risk is disclosed in Note 42.

20 Non-current provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 38)

Leave encashment (Refer Note 38)

Refer Note 26 for current portion of provision.

21 Other non-current liabilities

Outstanding Equal monthly
amount Installment (EMI)

Rate of Interest Date of last EMI

8.57

8.57

17.14

Outstanding
amount

750.00

750.00

Outstanding
amount

4.16

8.05

10.69

10.69

33.59

0.25

0.25

8.76%

8.76%

07-Jul-22

07-JUI-22

Equal monthly
Principal (EMP)

20.83

Rate of interest

12.00%

Date of last EMP

01-Apr-22

Equal monthly

installment (EMI)

0.45

0.78

0.25

0.25

Rate of interest

17.74%

13.50%

8.76%

8.76%

Date of last EMI

01-Jan-19

05-Feb-19

07-JUI-22

07-Jul-22

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

136.34 105.64

2.47 1.64

138.81 107.28

As at As at

March 31. 2019 March 31, 2018

17.55 12.36

17.55 12.38
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22 Current borrowings

Secured

Loan repayable on demand
Cash credit from bank

Bank Overdraft

Unsecured

Loan from NBFC

Total current borrowirrgs

As at

March 31, 2019

979,35

271.77

1,251.12

142.13

142.13

1,393.25

As at

March 31, 2018

1,045.14

1,045.14

1,045.14

Note;

Details of these loans are as follows:

Pnmary security

firstandexclusive charge onentirecurrent assets of theCompany both present andfuture for Cash credit from Indusind Bank.

Collateral security I to Indusind bank)

a.Corporate guarantee ofCL Educate Limited (Holding Company) amounting Rs. 1,450.00 lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs 1,450.00 lakhs)
b. Lien onfixed deposits amounting Rs. 290.00 lakhs I March 31.2018; Rs 290.00 lakhs) (Refer Mote 13)
c- Firstand exclusive chargeon movable fixedassetsof the Company both presentand future.

Collateral security (to iCICIbank)

a. Lien onfixed deposits amounting Rs. 300.00 lakhs (March 31.2018: Rs Mil) (Refer Note 13)

interest rates

a. 13-55io p.a tillSeptember 25.2017 onCC Limit from Indusind Bank.
b. 11.50% p.a fromSeptember26, 2017 on CC Limit fromIndusind Bank,
c. 14.50% p.a tor Loan from Nortem Arc.

d. 0.75% p.a.over andabove the FD Interest rateonOverdraft facility from ICICI Bank.

Guarantees

a.The cash credit facility and Loan from Mortem Arc isfurther secured by personal guarantees ofdirectors of the company i.e. by, Mr. Gautam Puri and Mr.
Nikhil Mahajan.

b. Aggregate amount of loans guaranteed by directors ofthe Company as atyear end Rs. 1.121.48 lakhs | March 31. 2018: Rs.1,045.14 lakhs)

Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows;

For amount outstandina as at March 31 . 2019

Loan

Loan from Northern Arc

Note: Company s exposureto liquidity nsk isdisclosed in Note42.

23 Trade payables

Trade payables
• to micro and small enterprises

- to others

Outstanding
amount

142.13

142.13

(i) ReferNote41 for dues to microand small enterprises
(ii) Refer Note 39 for payable to related parties
Ilii) Company 5exposure to liquidity risk related to tradepayables Isdisclosed innote42.

24 Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of non-current vehicle loan from banks
Current maturities of non-current loan from others

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Employees related payables
Receipts on behalfofclients (refer note 27(vi))
Payable for fixed assets

•SJ^NoteTGiWpany's exposure to liquidity riskisdisclosed in Note42.

so ACC

Equal monthly
Installment (EMI)

29.48

flate of interest

14.50%

As at

March 31, 2019

2,113.58

2,113.58

Date of last EMI

13-Aug-19

As at

March 31. 2018

1,996.21

1,996.21

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

4.63 12.29

229.17 4.16

1.81 0.26

95.27 91.53

275.64 226.80

12.94

606.52 347.98

^arke///7
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25 Other current llabllfties

Contract Liabilities

Statutory dues payable

Lease equalisation reser>«

Formovement ofcontract liabilities. ReferFootnote - 27 (ii)

26 Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 38)

Leave encashment (Refer Note 38)

.urrent portion of provision.

<<Thespace Is Intentionally left blank»

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

350.77

197.28

297.09

128.21

0.32

548.05 425.62

As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018

1.51

0.03

0.66

0.02

1,54 0.68

P3/ \-2

New Delhi



H«Mon«ln(Bgraud Marketing Servtees Private Limited
Notet to the financial tutements for the year ended March J1, 2019
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27 Revenue from operations
Year ended

Ateieh31, 2019

Year ended

Merch 31. 20tB

Sale Ql services 11,976.17 9,503.19

11,976.17 9.503.19

Notes.

Dlsagfregated revenue Information

Set out Pelow is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers:

fatwwirv EvenO Digital MAIS Total

Type of goods or service

Sale of Services 10,283.04

Total revenue from contracts with custmners 10,283.04
Geographical markets

India 10,218.75
Overseas 64.29
Total revenue from contracts with cuatomers 10.283.04

272.63

272.63

250.79

21.84

272.63

1,420.50

1,420.50

1,403.54

16.96

1,420.50

11,976.17

11,976.17

11.873.08

103.09

11,976.17

Changes In contract llabllty are as folknvs;- Year ended

Aiarch 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year

Revenue recognised that wasdeductedfromtrade receivables as unearnedrevenuebalanceat the beginning of the year
increase due to invoicing during the year .excluding amount recognised as reverue dunng the year
Balance at the end of the year

297.09

1297.09)

350.77

350.77

Thetransaction pnce allocatedto the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partiallyunsalsfiedi Year ended

«terch31, 2019

Within one year

More than one year

350.77

Changes In contract assets are as (ollows:- Year ended

March 31. 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year

Revenue recognised that wasadded to trade receivables as unbilled revenuebalanceat the beginning of the year
irxrease due to amount not recognised as revenue during the year
Balance at Use end of the year

I,221.15

II,146.70)

623.06

697.51

Iv. Operaling segments arethecomoonents ofentity whose results areregularly reviewed bytheentity's chief operaPng decision maker. The comoany has different categones ofrevenue
but due to absenceof discreteinformation about the eiperse incurred to earn that reverue is not sufficient for decision making withregardto resourceallocation and performance
measteeoienc of a segment.Hence the company hasnotconsidered anyrevenuerelated information to be treated as operatingsegment.

11 includes from Related Party. (Refer Hote 29)

Revenue as an agent

Tt* Company is involved inmarketing andsalesemces.Such activities interalia Involves, working at times, as ageniof the customers lor certain events or forcertain activities inan
event. For exangile the custonwr at tunes request forcollection of registration fees for the event, which is collected by the Company and paidto the customers. Insuch cases
rvjrmally there are, either tt* related event revenue orFormal fees/comrmssion. In such case therevenue disclosed inChe financials includes only theamount ofthe(ees/eommisslon
inaccordance withpara34to 38of IndAsllS. Ourlfig thefinancial year2018 19thedetails of the collectaWe amount on behalfof thecustomers aredetailed asunder. Such amount Is
gerwrally paid asarvj when collected and balance ifany isdisclosed under "Receipts onbehalf ofclients" as other current financial liability.

Amount collected/colleclable on behalf of various customers

Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the

fear ended

March 31, 2019

1,386.43

90.11

The Company is involved inmarketing aik) s.ile services. Such activities interalia involves, working at limes, asagent of thecustomers forcertain events orforcertain activities Inan
event. For e>ample thecustomer a) times request lorpayment to vanous vendors for theservices rendered to them, which ispaid by If* Company to vanous vendors and collected
from customers. Insuch casesnormally thereare, eitherthe relatedeventrevenue or normal fees/commission. Insuch case the revenue disclosed in the financials (nciodes only the

aiiviuntof thefees/commission maccordance vviih para 34 tp 31 of Ind As 115. During thefinancial year 2018 19(hedetails of theamount paid/ payable onbehalf of thecustomers
aredetailed asunder. Such amount isgenerally collected from client asarvJ wl*n paid and balance if any isdisclosed under Irade Receivable" ascurrent financial assets.

Amount paid/payable on behalf of variouscustomers dunng the year
Amountof fees/commisslon/related charges forming part of the revenue for the year

28 Other Income

Interest incon* from financial assets measured at amortised cost
-Security deposits

Interest income on

•Bank deposits

-Income Ux Refund

•Loara to related parties (Refer Note 39}
Liabilities ro longer required written back

Excessprovisionfor doubtful trade receivables written baUi
Net gain on foreign exchange transactlpn
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous income

Year ended

March 31, 2019

503.44

35.85

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 I4arch31, 2018

7.05 7.03

43.51 18.75

29.15

26.B8 57.89

68.01 150.21

15.87

1.59 27.U

0.07 0.11

2.50 5.90

149.63 312.29
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Employee benefits expense

Year ended Yeer ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Salsnes and wages 2,020.22 1,836.60
Contnbution to provident and other funds iRefer Note 301 B3.B1 67.66
Eipenses related to post-emoloyment defined benefit plan IRefer Note 3B) 99.01 99.96
Expenses related to compensated absences IRefer Note 3B) 1.19 1.17

Staff welfare expenses 108.19 99.87

2,262.37 2.049.76

Finance cost

Yew ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Interest expense on borrowings IS6.11 85.57

Interest on delayed payment of Statutory dues' 0.00 1.95
Commission expense on financial guirantees 1.95 1.28
Other borrowing cost 2.90 13.75

160.06 102.05
' Amount as shown Is Rs. 200 for year ended March 31, 2019,

Depredation and amortisation expense

Yew ended Yearendad

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 87.69 126.02

AmortisaCion of intangible assets 3.95 2.28

91.19 128.30

Other expenses

Year ended Year ended

lAarch 31, 2019 March 31. 2018

Banquet and hotel expense 1,909.61 1,226.25
Giveaways 1.S2S.S6 1,667.32
Temporary manpower resources 607.23 482.35
Photography charges 68.07 70.75
Equipment hire charges 1,168.36 623.02

Sponsorship fees 112.63 127.10
Pnnttng and stationery 95.98 106.33

Travelling expenses 583.68 436.93

Communication expemes 292.28 253.16
CSR Expenses 6.28

Rent Ireler note 361 156.71 127.89
Business promotion expenses 1,197.96 953.12
Repairs and maintenance 92.01 53.69
Insurance 31.61 18.80
Electricity charges 21.88 25.85

Sundry balances written off 30.70 5.89
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 32.32 90.35

Event corsultancy 1.799.13 1,208.90
Legal and professional charges liefer note i below) 81.59 66.53

Miscellaneous expenses 53.77 29.28

9,207.38 7,029.69

Amount Written off:

Bad Oebu Written Off 103.50

Less: Provision made in earllet years 103.50

9.207.38 7,029.69

(1) Payment to auditors fexcludlng GST)

Year ended Year ended

Alwch 31, 2019 March 31. 2018

As auditor

Statutory audit 9.00 10.50

In other capacities

feiliTnel|Mii fees 0.55 1.40

Mingi^
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33 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on 'Earnings per share'

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Refer Note i & ii)

(attributable to Equity Shareholders of the company)

Nominal Value per share

i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator)

Profit from operations

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

ii. Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Op»iing balance of issued equity shares

Effect of shares issued during the year, if any

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS

Note: At pi does not have any dilutive potential equity shares.

<The space is intentionally left blank»

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 201S

28.06

10.00

260.63

280.63

10,00,000

10,00,000

33.29

10.00

332.91

332.91

10,00,000

10,00,000



Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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34 Income taxes

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Amounts recognised In profit or loss

Current tax expense

Current year 108.02 202.67

Adjustment for prior years 20.05

108.02 222.72

Deferred tax expense 16.20 (49.95)

Total Tax Expense 124.22 172.77

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

• Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (4.10) (4.06)

(4.10) (4.06)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Rate Amount Rate Amount

Profit before tax from continuing operations 27.82% 404.85 33.38% 505.68

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 112.63 168.80

Tax effect of:

Tax effect of Permanent timlmg difference 0.71 0.42

Tax adjustments relating to earlier years 20.05

Others 10.88 (16.49)

124.22 172.78

Movement in deferred tax balances

Year ended Recognized In Recognized In OCI Year ended

March 31, 2018 P&L March 31, 2019

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Deferred tax assets

Provision for employee benefits 35.75 7.39 4.10 39.04

Provision for bonus 20.32 (8.98) . 11.34

Provision for allowance for doubtful debtors 41.27 (27.66) . 13.61

Provision for doubtful supplier advances 0.13 (0.13) -

Lease equalisation reserve 4.32 0.56 - 4.88

Property, plant and equipment (1.05) 14.61 - 13.56

Amortisation of Security Deposits 3.91 1.31 - 5.22

Sub- total (a) 104.65 (12.90) 4.10 87.65

Deferred tax liabilities

LongTerm Borrowings • 2.08 - 2.08

Amortisation of Prepaid rent 3.41 1.22 • 4.63

Sub- total (b) 3.41 3.30
- 6.71

Net deferred tax (asset) liability (b}-(a)

Deferred tax assets

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for bonus

Provision for allowance for doubtful debtors

Provision for doubtful supplier advances

Lease equalisation reserve

Amortisation of security deposits

Sub- total (a)

Deferred tax liabilities

Proaecw^lyt andequipment
opiitiiitl^F^^^repaid rent

et) liability (b)-(a)

?OaccP

(101.24)

Year Ended March

31, 2017

26.64

9.26

33.09

0.13

1.82

1.61

72.55

16.14

1.06

17.20

(55.35)

16.20

Recognized in
P&L

13.18

11.06

8.17

2.50

2.30

37.21

15.09

(2.35)

12.74

49.95

(4.10) (80.94)

Recognized in OCI Year ended March

31,2018

4.06

4.06

35.75

20.32

41.27

0.13

4.32

3.91

105.70

1.05

3.41

4.46
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35 Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

a. Commitments

There are no capital or other commitments as on March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

b. Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as wi March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

c. Contingent assets

There are no contingent assets as on AAarch 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

36 Operating lease

A. Leases as a lessee

The Company has taken various office premises under cancellable and non cancellable operating leases ranging from 11 months to 60 months. These lease
agreements have escalation clauses ranging from 0% to 1036 and are usually renewable on mutually agreeable terms. Disclosure in respect of such operating leases
is as given below;

i Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

ii Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Lease rent recognised in the statement of profit and loss

B. Leases as a lessor

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

145.96 135.63

188.00 327.15

333.96 462.78

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

156.71 127.89

The Company has given some of its fixed assets on cancellable operating lease and the lease terms are generally for one year. There are no non cancellable leases
and hence disclosure relating to minimum lease receipts has not been provided.

1 Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Lease ren i^d in the statement of profit and lossduring the year
table leases

<«The space is intentionally left blank»

Year ended

March 31, 2019

Year ended

March 31, 2018

1.80
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37 Segment information

In theopinion of themanagement, there isonly one reportable segment. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting isrequired tobe
made in the financial statements of the Company.

The Company's Board of Directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they are responsible for all major
decision w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and
acquisition, and expansion of any new facility.

I. Geographic information

Since the Company's activities/operations are primarily within the country andconsidering the natureof services it deals Inthe risks and returns are
same and as such there are no reportable geographical segments.

a) Revenue from external customers

Particulars Year ended

AAarch 31, 2019

Year ended

March 31, 2018
India 11,873.08 9,373.91
Outside India 103.09 129.28

Total 11,976.17 9,503.19

b) Non-current assets

Total ofnon-current assets otherthanfinancial instruments, investment insubsidiaries and deferred taxassets broken down by location of the assets, isshown
below:

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2019

As at

March 31, 2018
India 1,831.75 1,194.04
Outside India

-

Total 1,831.75 1,194.04

ii. Information about products and services

The Company provides integrated business marketing and sales service like managed manpower, training, event management, custcxtier
engagement, marketing communication and digital marketing services for corporate to conductvery largeconferencesand exhibitions.

iii. Major customer

Revenue from transactions with external customeramounting to 10per cent or moreof the Company's revenue isas follovrs:

Client Name
As at

AAarch 31, 2019
As at

March 31, 2018
Customer 1 2,718.78 3,774.03
Customer 2 2,588.24 2,343.71

<<Thespace is intentionally left blank>
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38 Em^oyee benefits

The Companycontributes to the followingpost-employment defined beitefit plans In India.

(i) Defined Contribution Plans
The Companymakes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifyingemployees towards provident fund, which Isa defined
contribution plan. TheCompany has no obligations otl>er than to makethe specifiedcontributions. The contributions are chargedto the statement of profitand lossas they
accrue.

Contribution to Government Provident Fund

Year ersded Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

74.87 60.47

74.87 60.47

(it) Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

The presentvalue obligation is deteimined based on actuarial valuation as at balancesheet date usingthe projected unit credit methodwhichrecognises each year of serviceas
giving rise to additionalunit of employeebenefit entitlement and meawres each unit separately to buildup the finalobligations. The schemeis funded by the Company and
contribution is made to group gratuity policy issued by Life insurance Corporation of India.

Themostrecent artuarial valuationof plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuitywere carried out as at March 31, 2019.The presentvalue
of the definedbenefit obligations and the related current servicecost and past servicecost, were measuredusingthe Projected UnitCreditMethod.

A. Based on the actuarial valuationobtained In this respea, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised In the Company's financial
statements as at balance ^et date;

Net defined beitefit liability

Liability for Gratuity

Total employee benefit liabilities

Non-current

Current

As at As at

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

137.64 106.30

137.64 106.30

136.13

1.51

105.64

0.66

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) / liability
Thefollowing table shows a reconciliation fromthe openingbalancesto the closing balancesfor net definedbenefit (asset) liabilityand its components:

Vear ended March 31, 2019

Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined benefit Defirted benefit Fair value of plan Net defined
obllgatton plan assets (asset)/ liability obligation assets benent

(asset)/ liability
Balance as at the beginning of the year 110.20 3.91 106.29 80.94 2.84 78.10
Not considered in last year 0.03 (0.03)
Included in profit and loss
• Current service cost 40.72 40.72 34.68 34.68

• Past service cost 8.93 8.93

• Interest cost/ (Income) 8.60 0.31 8.29 6.07 0.21 5.86

159.52 4.22 155.30 130.62 3.08 127.54

Included in OCI

Remeasurements loss (gain)
- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assung>tions 2.97 2.97 (9.37) (9.37)
• demographic assun^tlons 1.44 1.44

• experience adjustrrwnl (17.83) (17.83) (4.18) (4.18)

• Return on plan assets excluding Interest (0.13) 0.13 0.06 (0.06)
tncome

(14.86) (0.13) (14.73) (12.11) 0.06 (12.17)
Other

Contributions paid by the emplciyer 4.19 (4.19) . 10.00 (10.X)
Benefits paid (5.00) (5.00) (8.31) (8.16) (0.15)
Fund management charges (1.15) 1.15 (0.94) 0.94

Admin charges (0.11) 0.11 (0.12) 0.12

Received from LICagainst Provision

(5.00) (2.07) (2.93) (8.31) 0.78 (9.09)
Balance as at the end of the year 139.66 2.02 137.64 110.20 3.92 106.28

C. Expenses recognised in the profit and loss account

Current service cost

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

40.72 34.68

8.93

6.29 5.86

49.01 49.47
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Theplan assets of the Company are managedby LifeInsurance Corporation of Indiain terms of an insurance policy taken to fundobligations of the Company with respect to its
gratuity plan. The categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets Is based on information provided by Life Insurance Corporation of India with respect to its
investment pattern for group gratuity fund for Investments managed in total for several other companies.

Funds ftenaged by insurer (investment with insurer)

E Actuarial assumptiorts

a) Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date
with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation
assumptions are as follovrs which have been selected by the company.

Discount rate

Expected rate of future salary increase

b) Demographic assumptions

1) Retirement age (years)

ii) Mortality rates Inclusive of provision for

disability

ill) Ages

Upto 30 years

From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 years

As at As at

Aiaich 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

100% 100%

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

7.66% 7.80%

8.00% 8.00%

As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

5< 58

100% of lALM (2006-08)

Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate (%)

External/Internal External/internal

2.32/1.22% 2.32/1.22%

1.77/0.90% 1.77/0.90%

0.14/0.06% 0.14/0.06%

F. Sensitlvtty analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the repcKtlng date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the arrxxjnts shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and vrithdrawals are not material and hence impact of changes are not calculated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in
payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Discount rate (0.5% rrxivement)

Expected rate of future salary increase (0.5% movement)

As at March 31, 2019

Increase Decrease

(11.50)

11.75

11.65

(11.51)

As at March 31,2018

Increase Decrease

(10.04)

9.66

9.73

(10.07)

C. Description of Risk Exposures

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over the time. As such, company is exposed to various risks as follows: -

A)Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability, increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment risk - If Plan is funded then assets and liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuatton date

can Impact the liability.

C) Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

D) Mortality and disability - Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can intact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liability.

H. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year

Between 1-2 years

Between 2-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

1.71

1.36

5.89

130.70

139.66

Expected contributions for the next annual reporting period as at Alarch31, 2019: Rs 61.63 lakhslMarch 31, 201B: Rs 56.41 lakhs).
! duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 22.33 years (March 31, 2018; 22.50 years).

^^OAcco;^

0.66

1.27

6.12

102.16

110.21

^arke%



Ke«tone Intefrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Notes to the financial sutementsfor the year ended March 31, 2019
(Ailamounts are Rupees In lacs, unless otherwise stated;

(ii) Other long-term em|rioyee benefits:

Thecompany provides for compensated absences to some of its employees. Theemployees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utiliseit in future serviceperiodsor receive cash compensation on terminationof OTployment. Sincethe compensatedabsences maynot fall due wholly withintwelvemonths
after the endof the period in which the employees renderthe relatedservice andare alsonot expectedto be utilized wholiy vdthin twelve months after the endof suchperiod,
the benefitis classified as a long-term employee benefit.TheCompany determines the expense forcompensated absences basis the actuarialvaluation and the presentvalue of
the obligation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

A. Based on the actuarialvaluation obtainedin this respect, the following table sets out the status of the leaveencashment planand the amounts recognised in the Company's
financiat statements as at balance sheet date:

March 31,2019 March 31, 201B
Defined benefit liability

Liability for leave encashrrrent 2.51 1.66

Total employee benefit liabilities 2.51 1.66

Non-current 2.4S 1.64

Current 0.03 0.02

Movement in net defined benefit liability
Thefollowing table shows a reconciliation fromthe openingbalancesto the closing balancestor net definedbenefit liabilityand its components;

Year ended Year ended

March 31. 2019 March 31, 2016

Defined benefit Defined benefit

obligation obligation
Balance as at the beginning of the period 1.66 1.43

Not considered In last year

Included in profit or loss

Current service cost 1.14 1.31

Fund management chains

Admin charges

Received from UC against Provision

interest cost (income) 0.13 0.11

2.93 2.85

- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions 0.06 (0.17)
- demographic assumptions (0.01)
- experience adjustment (0.18) (0.07)

-Return on plan assets excluding interest *

income

(0.13) (0.24)
Other

Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid (0.29) (0.95)

(0.29) (0.95)
Balance as at the end of the period 2.51 1.66

Expenses recognised in the profit and loss account Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Current service cost 1.14 1.31

Actuarial (gain)/lo$s (0.13) (0.24)
Net Interest cost 0.13 0.11

1.14 1.18

Actuarial assumptions

Economic assumptions

The(Kincipal assumptions are the discountrate and salarygrowthrate. ThediKounlrate is based uponthe marketyieldsavailableon Government bondsat the accounting date
with a term that matches that of Ifabflities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevantfactors on longterm basis. Valuation
assurrgitions are as foilovrswhich have been selected by the company.

Discount rate

gte of future salary Increase

?OacCO

As at

March 31,2019

7.6611

8.00K

As at

March 31. 201B

7.80K

B.Om
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(AltamoimUore Rupees In laa, unless otherwise stated)

b) Dentographic assumptions

i) Retirement age (years)

ii) Mortality rates Inclusive of provision for
disability

iii) Ages

Upto 30 years

From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 years

Year ended

March 31,2019

Year ended

March 31, 2018

58 58

iOCKOf lALM (2006-08)

Withdrawal rate (X) Withdrawal rate (%)

0.00k

2.23k

O.CDk

O.OOK

2.23X

0.00k

E. Sensitivfty analysis
Reasonably possible changesat the reportingdate to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, viould haw affected the definedbenefit
obligation by the amounts shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are rwt material and hence impactof changenot calculated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in
payment, rate of Increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Discount rate (0.5k movement)

Expected rate of future salary increase (0.5k movement)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

IfKrease Decrease Increase Decrease

(0.19)

0.20

0.21

(0.19)

(0.13)

0.15

0.15

(0.13)

F. Description of Risk Exposures
Valuations are basedon certain assumptions, whichare dynamic in nature and varyover time. Assuch,con^any is exposedto variousrisksas follow:-

A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan'sliability. Increase insalary increase rate assumption in futurevaluations willalsoincrease the liability.

8) Investment risk - If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can
impact the liability.

C) Discountrate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

D)Mortalityand disability - Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals • Actual withdrawals proving higtieror lowerthan assumedwithdrawals andchangeof withdrawal rates at subsequentvaluationscan impactPlan's liability.

G. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year

Between 1-2 years

Between 2-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

0.03

0.05

0.13

2.30

2.51

Expected contributions for the next annual reporting period as at March 31, 2019; Rs. l.iOlacs (March 31, 2018; Rs. 1.09 lacs).
!durati(wi of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 18.08 years (March 31, 2018; 18.92 years).

• (NEW
«<The space Is intentionally (eft blank>»

\^a^ke/r

0.02

0.03

0.10

1.51

1.66
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Allamounts ore Rupees In laa, unless otherwise stated)

39 Related parties

A. Related parties and their relationships

a) HolcBngcompany

Name of the company Type Place of incorporation
Ownership biterest

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Immediate and

CL Educate Limited ultimate parent
entity

India 100K 100%

b) Subsidiary company

Name of tiie company Type Place of Incorporation
Ownership interest

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Kestone CLAsia Hub Pte Limited (Formerly known as Kestone
Asia Hub Pte Limited) Direct Singapore 100X 100%

Kestone CL USLimited (from March 22, 2018) Indirect USA 100% 100%

c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

d) Fallow subsidiaries

e) Enterprises In which key management
personnel and their relatives having
control and significant influence

Mr. Satya Narayanan R, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Gautam Purl, Non-Executive Director

Mr. NIkhii Mahajan, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cirish ShtvanI, Additional (Non-Executive Independent! Director

CL Media Private Limited

C K Publications Private Limited

Career Launcher Education Infrastructure and Services Limited

Accendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited
Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

Ice Gate Educational Institute Private Limited

Biiakes Consulting Private Limited, India

CLEF- AP, India

Career launcher Education Foundation, India

Naianda Foundation (upto June 30, 2017)
Career Launcher Employee Welfare Society

B. Transactions with the above in the ordinary course of business

a. Rendering of services

Holding company

- CL Educate Limited

• Marketing and sales services

• Online marketing su^jort services
• Managed Manpower Services

Subsidiary

- Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte Ltd

• Marketing and sales services

Fellow subsidiary
CL Media Private Limited

- Marketing and sates services

- Online marketing suj^rt services

b. interest income on loans given

Fellow subsidiary

- CL Media Private Limited

Subsidiary company

- Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte Limited

Enterprises over which key managerial personnel exercise significant influence
- Career Launcher Education Foundation

- Naianda Foundation

c- Unsecured loans given

Subsidiary company
- Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte Limited

d. Repayment received of unsecured loans given

Fellow subsidiary
- CL Attdia Private Limited

a. Debitnotes/Invoicesreceived for expenses incurred/Services rendered by related parties wi behalf of Company

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

elow

35.65

72.84

8.00

25.26

0.60

246.72

22.68

5.65

1.03



Kwtcna lnt»traM4 Mark*tln| ScrvtcM PrivkW LimiMd

News to th« flnanci*! >tat»tn*nt> fer the year ended Mereh 11, 2019

(All amounts art Rupees in loa, unltst othtrwht statrd)

f. Amount Weurred en behelf of

Holding company «

• CLEducate LXnllSd

g. Loan converted into Investment made during the year

Subsidiary company

- Kestone CL Asia Hid> 9te Limited

h. Repayment of Inwrest

Fellow subsidiary

- CL Media Private Limited

C (alances eutstarsding at at year end

a. Trade Receivablo

Enterprlset over which key managerial personnel exercise significant influence

- Career Launcher Education Foundation

Holding company

- CL Educate Limited

Fellow subsidiary

• CL Media Private Limited

Subsidiary company

• Kestone CL Asia Pte Limited

b. Interest accrued but net due en loans givefi:

i
Enterprises over which key managerial personnel exeretse significant influence
- Career Launcher Education Foundation

Fellow subsidiary

• CL Media Private Limited

Subsidiary csmpany

- Kestone CL Asia HiA Pte Limited

c. Receivable gainst expenses iiKurred on behalf of related parties:

Holding company

- CL Educate Limited

d. Current loan:

Enterprises over vdiidi key managerial personnel exercise significant influence

<areer Launcher Education Foundation

Fellow subsidiary

• CL Media Private Limited

Subsidiary company

- Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited

IDuiing the year no fresh loan has been given, difference is due to the forex reinstatement)

e. Pay^le for expenses

Fellowsubsidiary ^
• CL Media Prlvatelimited

Holding company

• CL Educate Limited

f. Trade advances given for expenses to be incurred

Fellow subsidiary

• CL Media Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

* Accendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited

g, Guarantees against loan taken by the Company

Holding company

• CL Educate Limited

Atat As at

March 31. 2019 March 31, 2019

75.29 75.29

321.97 1,475.37

50.30 20.30

1,450.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with tho related parties:

1) All transactions of rendering of services Eiother with these related parties are priced on an arm's Lengthbasis and resulting outstanding balances are to be settled in cash. Noneof
the balances are secured.

2) The principal amount of loan outstanding to Career Launcher Education Foundation and Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited carry a variable inwrest as agreed between both the parties
from time to time. The current raw of interest is l2.S1i and 91i respectively.
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Notes te the flnanciai statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(Alt amounts are Rupees In Iocs, unless otherwise stated)

CO Corporate Social Responsibility

Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 which came Into effect on April 1 2014 reaulres the Company to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Directors
adopt a CSR Policyand spend at least 296 of Its average net profits made durirrgthe immediately preceding three financial years towards CSR activities as set out in Schedule Vllto
the Companies Act 2013.

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act

Amount spent during the year

(l| Consturction/acquisltion of an asset

'(II) On purposes other than (i) above

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, ZOia

41 In terms of the clause 22 of chapter V micro, small and Mediumenterprises development Act 2006 (MSMED act 20061, the disclosure of payments due to any supplier as at Alarch
31, 2019 are as follows;

Parties covered urxler "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" IMSMED Act, 2006) have been identified on the basis of confirmation received. Based
upon the information available, the balance due to the Microand Small Enterprises as defined under the AlSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil (Aiarch31, 2018; Rs. Nil), Further no Interest
during die year has been paid or Is payable under the terms of the MSmEDAct, 2006.

the principal amount and die Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year;

the amount of interest paid by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the Micro, Sm^l and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid tut
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

the amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when

the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

<<Tbe ^>ace is intentionaUy left blank>>
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As at

March 31, 2019
As at

March 31,2016
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are /RupeesIn lacs, unless othervrise stated;

42. Fair value measurement and financial instruments

a. Financial instruments - by cat^ory and fair values hierarchy

The following table showsthe carryingamountsand fair value of financialassets and financial liabilities, Including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

I. As on March 31, 2019

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Levels

Financial assets

Non-current

Security deposits 59.59 59.59 - 59.59

Other Financial Assets 175.00 175.00
- •

Current

Trade receivables 4,120.51 4,120.61 .

Cash and cash equivalents - 79.44 79.44 .

Bankbalances other than cash and cash equivalents • 799.55 799.65 . .

Loans and security deposits - 319.52 319.52 . -

Other financial assets
-

827.29 827.29
- •

Total
- - 6,381,10 6,381.10 - . 59.59

Financial liabilities

Non-current

Borrovrings 525.87 525.87
- -

Current

Borrowings • 1,393.25 1,393.25 .

Trade payables - 2,113.58 2,113.58 .

Other financial liabilities
• 506.52 605.52

• -

Total
•

4,639.22 4,639.22 • - •

fi. Ason March 31. 2018

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Levels

Financial assets

Non-current

Security deposits

Other financial assets

-
52.44 52.44

- 52.44

Current

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans and security deposit

Other financial assets

•

2,863.92

21.01

291.93

359.84

1,309.86

2,863.92

21.01

291.93

369.84

1,309.86

Total
• • 4,909.00 4,909.00 • - 52.44

Financial liabilities

Non-current

Borrowings
17.13 17.13

- -

Current

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

•

.

1,045.14

1,995.21

347.98

1,045.14

1,996.21

347.98

• -

Total
• •

3,406,46 3,406.46 • • -

TheCompany's borrowings havebeencontractedat floating rates of interest, which resetsat shortintervals. Accordingly, the carrying valueofsuchborrowings (including
Interest acaued but not due) approximates fair value.

The carrying amountsof trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cashequivalentsand other financialassets and liabilities, approximatesthe fair values, due to their
short-termnature. Fairvalue of non-current financialassets w4iich Includesbankdeposits (due for maturity after twelve monthsfrom Uiereportingdate) is similarto the
carrying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

security deposits were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

insfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Alt amounts are Rupees In Iocs, unless otherwise stated)

Valuation techniques and processes

The valuation techniquesused to value non current financialassets and liabilitiesfor whom the fair valueshave been determined are basedon present valuesand the
appropriate discount rates of the Companyat each balance sheet date. The discount rate is t>ased on the weighted average cost of borrovrings of the Companyat each
balance sheet date.

The Managementperforms the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, includinglevel 3 fair values.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specificvaluation techniques used to value non current financial assets and liabilities for whom the fair values have been detemiined based on present values and the
appropriate discount rates of the Companyat each balance sheet date. The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of borrowingsof the Companyat each
balance sheet date.

b. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments;
• Credit risk;

• Liquidity risk ;

• Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Boardof Directorshas overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Boardof Directorshave
authorised senior management to establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in line vrith the businesses of
the company.

management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to monitor
limits. Riskmanagem^t policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

«The space is Intentionally left blank»
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lAUamounts are Rupees in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

b. Financial risk management (continued)

({) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the totai carrying amount of these financial assets in the balaisce sheet

Particulars As at

March 31, 2019

As at

March 31, 2018

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans and security deposits
Other financial assets

4,120.61

79.44

799.65

379.11

1,002.29

2,863.92

21.01

291.93

422.28

1,309.86

Credit riskis the riskof financial lossto the Company if a customeror counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit
exposure.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customers. The Company maintains a defined credit policyand monitors the exposures to
these credit riskson an ongoingbasis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company invests in deposits with scheduled commercial
banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

Trade receivables

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived
from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic enviorment in v^ich it operatesand the
Company manages its Credit riskthrough credit approvals, establishing credit limitsand continuosly monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which
the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade
receivable and other financial assets. The management uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss
allowance, the company estimates amounts based on the business environment in which the Company operates, and management considers that the
trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) when counterparty fails to make payments for receivable within the allowed credit period. However
the Company based upon historical experience determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 4,169.54 lakhs (March 31, 2018 - Rs. 2,984.03 lakhs . Trade receivables are generally realised
within the credit period.

The company believesthat the unimpared amountsthat are past due bymore than allowed credit periodare still collectible in full, basedon historical
payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars

1-90 days past due

91 to 180 days past due

More than 180 days past due

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivabies:

Particulars

Opening Balance

Imppfsne ognised / (reversed)

Gross carrying amount

As at

March 31, 2019

3,066.36

414.62

688.56

4,169.54

As at

March 31, 2019

120.11

(71.18)

48.93

As at

March 31, 2018

1,598.18

130.12

1,255.73

2,984.03

As at

March 31, 2018

95.62

24.49

120.11
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and stressed COTiditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and excluding interest accrued but not due) of Rs.
879.09 lakhs as at AAarch 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 312.95 lakhs) and the anticipated future internally generated funds from operations will enable it to
meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and funding from group companies to meet Its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The Company'sliquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The follovdng are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes
interest accrued but not due on b<»'rowings.

As at March 31, 2019
Carrying

amount

Contractual cash flows

Total Less than one year Between one year
and five years

More than 5 years

Borrowings
-From banks

Vehicle loans 17.23 17.23 4.73 12.50

-From others

Vehicle loans . .

Term Loan from Tata Capital

Unsecured Loan from Northern Arc

Cash credit from banks

Overdraft from ICICI

Trade payables

Employees related payables

Receipts on behalf of clients

743.22

143.16

979.35

271.77

2,113.58

95.27

275.64

750.68

143.16

979.35

271.77

2,113.58

95.27

275.64

229.85

143.16

979.35

271.77

2,113.58

95.27

275.64

520.83

3
o

1-

4,639.22 4,646.68 4,113.35 533.33
-

As at March 31, 2018

Borrowings

•From banks

Vehicle loans

-From others

Vehicle loans

Cash credit from banks

Trade payables

Employees related payables
Receipts on behalf of clients

Payable for fixed assets

Carrying

amount

29.68

4.16

1,045.14

1,996.21

91.53

226.80

12.94

3,406.46

Total

29.68

4.16

1,045.14

1,996.21

91.53

226.80

12.94

3,406.46

Contractual cash flows

Less than one year

12.55

4.16

1,045.14

1,996.21

91.53

226.80

12.94

3,389.33

Between one year
and five years

17.13

Trn

More than 5 years

\^arke^^
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6. Financial risk management (continued)

(iii) Market risk

Marketriskis the riskthat 0Wfuture cash flowsof a financial instrumentwill fluctuate becauseof changesin market prices. Marketriskcomprisesthree types of risk: interest rate risk, currencyriskand
other price risk, the Companymalrdyhas exposure to two type of market risk namely; currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while opUmisirtg the return.

Currerscy risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a finarKial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the
prevailing fineigncurrencyexchangerates on its firkancial positionand cash flowsto U>e extent of earningsand expensesin foreigncurrencies. Exposure arises primarilydue to exchangerate fluctuations
between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's operating, investing arrd financing actvibes.

Exposure to currertcy risk

The summaryof quanbtabve data about the Companys exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at March31, 2019 and March31, 2018 are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2019

USD Amount in INR SGD Amount in INR AUD Amount in INR CSP Amount in INR

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

0.S4 37.23 0.38

5.70

19.15

289.10

0.54 37.23 6.08 308.25 . - - .

O.M 37.57
-

0.05 2.66 0.07 5.96

0.54 37.57 - 0.05 2.66 0.07 5.96

Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities (0.00) (0.34) 6.08 308.25 (0.05) (2.66) (0.07) (5.96)

Particulars March 31. 2018

USD Amount In INR SGD Amount In INR AUD Amount in INR GBP Amount in INR

Financial assets

Trade receivables

outer receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

0.54 35.40

4.33 214.90

0.54 35.40 4.33 214.90 . - -

0.55 36.13
• - •

0.55 36.13 - - . .

Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities (0.01) (0.73) 4.33 214.90 - - - -

Sensitivity analysis

Areasonablypossiblestrengthening (weakening) of the IndianRupeeagainstbelowcurrenciesat March 31, 2019and March 31, 2018, wouldhave affected the measurementof financialinstrunents
denominated ina foreign currency andaffectedequityand profitor lossbythe amounts shown below.This analysis assumes that ail other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

1% depreciabon / appreciationin IndianRupeesagainst follovdng foreign
currencies:

Year ended March 31, 2019

USD (0.00) O.OO (0.00) 0.00

SGD 3.08 (3.08) 2.22 (2.22)
AUD (0.C3) 0.03 (0.02) 0.02
GBP (0.06) 0.06 (0.04) 0.04

Total 2.99 (2.99) 2.16 (2.16)

Year ended March 31, 2018

USD (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.01

SGD 2.15 (2.15) 1.43 (1.43)

Total 2.14 (2.14) 1.42 (1.42)

Singapore Dollar, AUD: Australian Dollar, GDP : Great Britain Poutrd

cOaCCP
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended AAarch 31, 2019

(All amounts are Rupees in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's main interest rate risk arises from non-current and current borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans and cash credit from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations
expose the Company's cash flow to interest rate risk.

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Cash credit from bank

Loan from NBFC

Term Loan from Financial Institutions

979.35

142.13

750.00

1,045.14

Total 1,871.48 1,045.14

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Eauitv net of tax

50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

Interest on loan from NBFC

Year ended March 31, 2019 0.80 (0.80) 0.58 (0.58)

Year ended March 31, 2018 - • -

Interest on CC Limit from Bank

Year ended March 31, 2019 5.10 (5.10) 3.68 (3.68)

Year ended March 31, 2018 3.34 (3.34) 2.22 (2.22)

43 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic c(Xtditionsand the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company monito's capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, v/hichis calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Borrowings 2,154.73 1,062.27

Less : Cash and cash equivalent 879.09 312.94

Adjusted net debt (A) 1,275.64 749.33

Total equity (B) 3,571.93 3,279.21

to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 35.71% 22.85%
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44 Standards issued but not yet effective

(a) Ind AS-116 Leases

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified IndAS 116. leoses IndAS 116will replace the e*isting leasesstandard, tnd AS 17,
Leases, and related interpretations. Thestandard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and diKlosure of leasesfor
both parties to a contract i.e. the lessee and the lessor, ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accountingmodel and requires a lessee to recognize
assets and liabilities for ail leases with an term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease
expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessee. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

TheCompany isevaluating the requirements of irsd AS 116and hasnot yet determined its impacton the financial statements.

(b) Amendment to Ind AS19- plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, "Employee benefits", in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendment requires an entity

• to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

• to lecognize in profitor loss as a part of pastservice cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, anyreduction insurplus, evenIf that surplus wasnot
previously recognized because of tiie impact of the asset ceiling,
Effective date for application of thisamendment is annual period beginning onor afterApril 1, 2019. TheCompany is currently evaluating theeffect
of this amendment.

(c) Amendment in Ind AS23- Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that
borrowing becomes partof the funds that anentityborrows generally when calculating thecapitalisation rate on general borrovdngs. TheCompany
does not expect any impact from this ansendment.

(d) Ind AS- 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax treatments:
OnMarch 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12Appendix C, Uncertainty Over Income TaxTreatmentwhich is to be applied
while performing the determination of taxable profit lor loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, vshen there Is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to Appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant taix
authority accepting eachtax treatment, or group of taxtreatments, when determining tax profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused taxlosses, unused tax
credit and tax rales.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition-
i) Full retrospective approach- Under this approach. Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordancewith IndAS 8 • Accounting Policies,Change in Accounting Estimatesand Errors,without usinghindsightand
ii) retrospectively withcumulative effectof initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application without adjusting
comparatives.

The Company isevaluating the requirements of Use amendment and theeffectonthe financial statements isbeing evaluated.
(e) Amendment to Ind AS 12-Income Taxes

On March 30,2019, Ministry ofCorporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12. "Income Taxes", in connection withaccotaiOng for
dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize UieIncome tax consequencesof dividend In profit or loss, other comprehensive incomeor
equity according to vdsere the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events.

Theeffect of adoptionof this amendmentof IndAS 12wouldbe insignificant in the financialstatements.

45 The Board of Directors of the Company hasapproved a scheme ofarrangement foramalgamation of the company ("Amalgamating Company )withits
parent company CL Educate Limited" ("Amalgamated Company") In itsmeeting held on November 27, 2018. An application under Regulation 37 of
the SEBI (LOOP) Regulations, 2015 was filed with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") and BSE Limited ("BSE"), for the proposed
amalgamation. The scheme will beeffective upon approval from National Company Law Tritjunal INCLT), The appointed date as finalized by the
Company is April 1. 2019.

46 Previous vear's figures have been regrouped / reclassified asper thecurrent period's presentation for thepurpose ofcomparability.
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